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CERTIFIED MAIL 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTEQ 

Mr. Gary Sheehan 
Kilpatrick Townsend &. Stockton LLP 
1100 Peachtree Street 
Suire 2800 
AUanra, Georgia 30309 

SUBJECT: 	 Gregory Packaging, Inc. 
Consent Agreement and Final Order 
Docket No. EPCRA-04-2012-2011(bj 

Dear Mr. Sheeban: 

Enclosed please lind an executed copy of the Consent Agreement and Final Order that resolves the 
Emergency Plaaning nnd Community Right-to-Know Acr of 1986 matter (Docket No. EPCRA-04­
2012-20 II (b» involving Gregory Packaging, [nc .. The CAPO was filed with the Regional Hearing 
Clerk, as required by 40 C.F.R. Part 22 and became effecrive 011 the date anhe filing. 

Also enclosed. please find a copy of the "Notk-e ofSecurities and Exchange Commission Registrants' 
Duty to DL~lose Environmental Lega1 Proceedings." This document puts you on notice ofyour 
potential duty to disclose to the Security and Exchange Commission any environmental enforcement 
actions taken by the Environmental Protection Agency, If you have any questions with regards to the 
SEC's environmental disclosure requirements, you may refer to tbe contact phone number at the bottom 
of the SEC Notice. 

If you have any questions, please call Ms. Deanne Grunt at (404) 562-9291. 

Sincerely, 

Caron B. Falconer. Chief 
EPCRA Enforcement Section 

Enclo:surcs 
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECflON AGENCY 
REGION 4 

IN THE MATTER OF: ) -::r:
Gregory I'lwkaging, Inc. 

) 
) Docket Number: EPCRA-04·2012·2011(b) ,.., -... :p 1'5 "" .... iil"" 

Respondent ) 
) "" ...., ",,""% ,."M<.n 
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1. Nature Qf!lw Action 0 
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1, This is a civil penalty proceeding pursuant to Section t09 of the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Uability Act (CERCLA), lIS amended, 42 U.S.C. 
§ 9609, and Section 325 of the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to·Know Act 
(EPCRA), 42 U.S.C.§ 11045, and pursuant to the Consolidated Rutes ofPractice Governing 
Administrative Assessment oiCivil Penalties, and the Revocation/Termination or Su.qpension of 
Permits (Consolidated Rules), eudified at 40 C.F.R. Part 22. Complailll\llt is the mr"""" ofthe 
Air. Pesticides and Toxics Management Division, Region 4, U~ted States Environmental 
Protection Ageney (EPA). Respondent is Oregory Packaging, Inc. 

Z. Ccmplainant and Respondent have ",uferred ror the]JUl1JOsc of.ett1ement 
pursuant to 40 C.F.R § 22.18(b). nnd desire to resolve this matter and settle the allegations 
described herein without a fortnal hearing. Therefure. without the taking ofany evidence or 
tef;timony~ the making of any argwnent, or the adjudication ofany issue in this matter, and in 
accomance with 40 C.F.R.. §§ n.13(b), and TLIS(b), this Consent Agreement and Final Order 
(CAFO) will slmultanoously commence and conclude this matter. 

3. The authority to lake action under Section 109 ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9609, 
and Section 325 ofEPCRA, 42 U's.c. § 11045, is vested in the Administrator ofllPA. The 
Administrator ofEPA has delegated this authority under CERCLA and under EPCRA to the 
Regioeal Administrators by EPA Delegation' 14-31 and 22·3·A, both datud May 11, 1994. The 
Regional Arlminitltrator. Region 4. has redclegated to the Director. Air, Pesticides and Toxics . 
Management Division, the authority undet CERCLA by EPA Region 4 Delegation 14-31 dated 

. March 8,1999, and update;lAugnsr6, 2004, and the aulhority ander EPCRA by EPA Region 4 
Delegation 22.3-A, dated November 8, 1994. J>umumllo these delegations, the Director ofthe 
Air. Pesticides and Twdc:s ManagClIletlt Division W the authority to commence an enfot¢eIllellt 
action as the Complainant in this matter, 

4. Respondent is a corporation doing business in the State ofGeorgia: 



5. Respondent is a "person" as defined in Section 329(7) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. 

§ 11049(7), and Section 101(21) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.c. § 9601(21). 


6. Respondent has a "facility" as that term is defined by Section 101(9) ofCERCLA, 
42 U.S.C. § 9601(9), and by Scction329(4) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11049(4). 

7. Respondent's facility is located at 11 Amlajack Boulevard, Newnan, Georgia 

30265. 


8. Respondent is an "owner or operator" of the facility as that tcnn is. defined by 
Section 101 (20l(A) ofCERCIA, 42 U.S.C. § 9601(20)(A). 

111. EPA's Allegations ofViolatiQnB 

Vi!llati.n .fSection 103(a) ofCERCLA 

9. Section 102(.) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.c. § 9602(a), required the Administrator of 
EPA to publish a Iist ofsubstances designated as ha.zardou,.~ substances whith, when released 
into the environment, rna)' pre:scnt substantial danger to public health or welfare or the 
environment and to promulgate regulatiQIlS establishing the quantity ofany hazardous substance 
the rei.... ofwhich was required !Xl be reported under Section 103(a) nfCERClA, 42 U.S.C. 
§ 9603(.). EPA bas pchlished and amended such • list, inoluding the cececsponding reportable 
quantities (RQ) for those substances. Thi.lisl which is codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 302, was 
initially pchlilihed on April 4, 19S5 (50 Fed. Reg, 13474) and is periodically runanded. 

10. Section 103(.) ofCERClA, 42 U.S.C. § 9603(a), and the regulations fuond at 
40 C.P.R. § 302.6, require a person in charge of Il facility or wssel to immediately notify the 
National Resporuie Center (NRC), as soon as be or she has knowledge of a release ofn bazardous 
substance from such facility or vessel in an amount equal to, or greater than the RQ. 

II. Respondent was in charge of the facility during the relevlll1l period described 
below. 

12. Ammonia is a ''ha:z:ardow substance" as that term is defined by Section 101(14) 
ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9601(14), with an RQ oflOOpounds, as specIfied in 40 C.F.R. 
§ 302.4. 

13. On July 20. 2010, Respondent had a release of ammonia above the RQ at the 
fucility. 

14. EPA lllleges that Respondent violated the notification requirements: ofSection 
103(a) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9603(.), and the applicable CERClA regulations, 40 C.P,R. § 
302.6, by failing to immediately nolllY the NRC as soon as Respondent hed knowledge of the 
release ofmnmonia in an amount equal to or greater than its RQ at Respondent's facility and is 
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therefore subject to the assessment ofpenalties under Section 109 ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 
9609. 

15. Pursu.ntto Sociion 109 ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9609, and 40 C.F.R. Part 19, 

EPA may assess a penalty not to e~ceed $37.500 for each vioiation ofSection lO3(a) of 

CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9603(.), lhaloccurred after January 12, 2009. Each day a ,;olation of 

Section 103 continues constitutes a separate violation. Civil penalties under Section 109 of 

CERCLA,42 U.S.C. § 9609, may be """"",ed by Administrntive Order. 


Violations ofSection 304<a} QfEPCRA 

16. Section 304(a) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. §1l004(.), and the regulations found at 
40 C.F,R. § 355, Subpart C, require the- owner or opecatof of a facility at which hazanlous 
chel1licl1ls are produced. used or stored, to immediately notifY the State Emergency Response 
Commission (SERC) and Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC) when there bas been a 
release ofa CERCLA hazardous substance or an EPCRA extremely hazardous substance in an 
""",unt equal to or greater than the RQ. Section 304(0) does not apply to any release which 
results in exposure to peroons solely within the site or sites on which a facility is loooted. 

17, Respondent was th~ owner or operator of the fucility during the relevant peri~ 
described below. 

!8. At all times relevant to this matter, the facility produeed, used, or stored a 
"hazardou, cbcmica!" as defined lll1der Section 31 1 (e) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11021(.), and 
under 29 C.F.R. § 1910.1200(0). 

19. Ammonia is an "extremely haz!ll'dous substance" as that term is defined by 
Section 329(3) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11049(3), with an RQ of 100 pounds, as specified in 
40 C.F.R. Part 355, App.. A & B. 

20. On July 20, 2010, Respondent had a release oflltllnmnia above the RQ at the 
facility. EPA alleges that the release resulted in the potential for exJ:Xl8Ute to persons beyond the 
site or sites on which the facility is located, 

21. EPA alleges that Respondent violated the notification requirctuents ofSection 
304(.) of EPCRA, 42 U.s.C. 111004(0), and the applicable EPCRA regulations of40 C.P.R. 
§ 355, Subpart C, by failing to immediately notify the SERC as soon as Respondent had 
knowledge of the release ofammonia in an amount equal to or greater than the RQ at 
Respondent's facility. and is therefore subject to the assessment ofpenalties under Section 325 
ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. §11045. 

Violations of-Section 3~of SPCRA 

22. Section 304(e) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. §1l0000c), and the regulations fuund at 
40 C.F.R. § 355, Subpart C, require the owner or operator of. fuciJjty at which hazardou, 
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chemicals are produced, used or stored, to provide a written follow-up emergency notice to the 
SERe when there bas been a release ofa CERCLA hazardous substance or an EPCRA ' 
extremely hazardous substance in an amount equal to or greater than the RQ. 

23. Respondent was the owner or operator ofthe facility during the relevant perio~ 
described below. 

24. At all times relevant to this matter, the facility produced. used, or stored 
"hl!7.ardous chemicals" as defined under Section 3U(e) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11021(e), and 
under29C.F.R. § 1910.1200(0). 

25; Ammonia is an "extremely hazardous substance" as that term is defined by 
Section 329(3) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11049(3), with an RQ of lOOponnds, as specified io 40 
C.P.R. Part 355, Apps. A & B. 

26. On July 20. 2010. Respondoot had a release ofammonia above the RQ at the 
facility. 

27. EPA alleges that Respondent violated the notification requirements of Section 
304(0) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C, § 11004(0), by failing to provide. written fotlow-upemergency 
notice to the SERe when there had been a release ofanuuonia in an amOlmt equal to Qt greater 
than the RQ at Respondent's facility, and is therefore subject to the assessment ofpenaltieS under 
Section 325 of EPCR.>\, 42 U.s.C. §11045. 

28. Pursuantto Section 325(1)) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(1)), and 40 c'F.R. 
Part 19, EPA may assess a penalty ofnot more than $31~OO for each violation ofSection 304(a) 
and (e) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § II0000a), that occurred after January 12, 2009. Civil penalties 
under Section 325(1)) ofEPCRA, 42 U,S.C, § 11045(b), may be """",sed by Administrative 
Order. 

29. For the purpO$(l$ ofthis CAFO, Respondent admits lhe jurisdictional allegations 
set out above but neither admits nor denies the factual allegations set out above. ­

30. Respondent waives any right to contest the allegations and its right to appeal the 
proposed final order accompat"lYlng the Consent Agreement. 

3 L Rcsporuknt consents to the assessment ofand agrees to pay the vivil penalty as 
set forth Itl this CAFO. 

32. RespOndent certifies that as of the date orits execution of this CAFO, it is in 
compliance with all ",levant requirements of CERCLA, oed EPCRA. 

33. Compliance with the CAFO snaH fC8<)lve the allegations of violations contained 
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berein. This CAFO shall not otherwise affect any liability {)fRcspondent to the United State.~ 
other than as expressed herein, Neither EPA l10r Complainant waives any right to bring an 
ertfuroement action against Respondent for violation IJf any federal .or state statute, regulation or 
permit, to initiate an action for imminent and substantial endangermentl or to pursue criminal 
enforcement. 

34. Complainant and Respondent agree to settle this matter by their execution ofthis 
CAPO. The parties agree that the scttltwtmt of" this matter is in the publlc interest and that this 
CAFO is consistent with the applicable requirement, ofCERCLA and EPCRA. 

V. Final Order 

35. Respondent 'hall pay a civil penalty ofFOUR TIIOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED 
TWEN'IY FIVE DOLLARS ($4,425) for fl,. CERCLA viomlion which shall be paid within 
thirty (30) days .fthe effective date ofthi, CAFO: 

36. Re!!pOrnlenl shall pay the CERCLA civil pwalty by fotwarding a cashier's or 
certified check, payubu, 10 'EPA Hazardous Substallce Superi\ll1d" 10 one .rthe following 
addresses: 

I3YMAIL BY OVERNIGHT 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency U.s. Bank 

Superfund Payments 100:5 Convention -Plaza 

Cincinnati Finance Center Mail Stlltion SL·MO·C2GL 

P.O. Box 979076 St. Louis, Missouri 6310 I 

SI. Louis, Missouri 63197·9000 


The check: shall reference on its face the name and the Docket Number of the CAPO. 

37. Respornlent shaH pay a civil pcnaltyofTIlIRTEEN THOUSAND TWO 
HUNDRED SEVENTY FIVE DOLLARS ($13,275) for the EPCRA viollllions which shaU be 
paid within thirty (30) days ufthe effective dale of this CAFO. 

38. Respondent shall pay the EPCRA penally by forwarding a cashier's or certified 
check payable to Wfreasum:. United States ofAnterica,." to one ofthe fullo.....ing addresses: 

!!YMAIL BY OVBRNIQIIT 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency U.S. Bank 

Fines and Penalties 1005 Convention Plaza 

Cincinnati Finance Center Mail Slalion SL·MO-C2GL 

P.O. Box 979077 SI. Louis, Missouri 63101 

St Louis. Missouri 63 I 97·9000 


The chel--k shall reference on its face the name and the Docket Number of the CAPO. 
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39. At the time ofpaymcnt~ Respondent shall send a separate ropy of each check, and 
a written statement that payment ha.'i been made in accordance Witll this CAPO, to the following 
ilefSons at the following addresses: 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. EPA) Region4 
61 Fornyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Deanne D. Grant 
U.S.EPA, Region 4 
Air, Pesticides & Toxies MfUlagement Division 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgi. 30303 

Snundi Wilson 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Office ofEnvironmental Accountahirity 
61 Forsyth Strec~ S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

40. For the purposes ofstate and federal income taxes, Respondent shall not be 
entitled, and agrees not to attempt, to claim a deduction for any civil penalty payment made 
pursuaut to this CAPO. Any attempt by Respondent to deduct any such payments shall 
constitute a viQlation of this CAFO, 

41. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717, EPA is entitled w ass",", int_t and penalties On 
debts owed to the United States and a charge to cover the oost ofprocessing and handling a 
delinquent claim, Interest will therefore begin to accrue on the civil penalty from the effe.ctive 
date of this CAPO if the penalty is not paid by the date required. Interest will be assessed at the 
rnte established by the S=ctlryof'l'reasury putsuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717. A charge will be 
assessed to cover the costs ofdebt collection. including processing and handling oo&1.s and 
attorney fees. In addition, a penalty charge will be as,sessed on any pon.ion of the debt that 
remains delinquent more tMn. ninety (90) days after payment is due. 

42. Complainant and Respw1dent shall bear their own costs and attorney fces in this 
matter. 

43. "nIlS CAf'O shalt be binding upon the Respondent, its Sll{':C{:ssors and assigns, 

44. The fullowing individual is authorized to receive service for EPA in this 
p_ng: 
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Caron B. Falconer 
U.S. EPA, RegiQn4 
Air. Pesticides & Toxic Management Division 
61 Forsyth Stree~ S.w. 
Atlanta, GA 30303 
(404) 562-8451 

45. Each undersigned representative of the parties to this CAFO certifies that he or 
she is fully authorized by the party represented to enter into this CAFO and legally bind tl1at 
party to it 

VI. !,\j'fective Date 

46. The effective date ofthis CAFO ,hall be the date on which the CAFO is filed with 
the Regional Hearing Clerk. 

AGREED AND CONSENTED TO: 

Gregory Packaging. Inc, 

By: ,.'.' k ~ &.,.. Dn!e: I&/~ 
Name: -;;:;;:A;f~Y&CtJlY1 (Typed or Printed) 

Title: /'.ec·5·! i:>C_·-'.IV"'-J,{_____ (Typed or Primed) 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

By: 1-cc3~1f.t~~~:::.-.. Dn!e:~/dj.f
vBeverly H. ister, 

Air, Pesticides & Toxics 

Management Division 


Region 4 


-d "",J.
APPROVED AND SO ORDERED fllls c2c day of ~ ,201 L 

'" { " _ J 
~.a ___ ~~ SilSlUl: B. Schuh ....• 

Regional Judicilll Officer 
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CERTIFlCATEOF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that I have tlris day served a true and correct copy of the foregoing 

Consent Agreement and Final Ordt-T. In the Matter of Gregory Packa.gil)g, Inc., Docket Number. 

EPCRA·04-2012·20IHbl, on the parties listed below in the manner indicated: 

Caron B. Falconer (Via EPA's internal mail) 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Air, Pestiddes & TOXlcS Management Division 
61 Forsyth Street 

Atlanta, GA 30303 


Robert c.vlan (Via EPA', internal mail) 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 

Office of Envirorunental Accountability 

61 Forsyth Street 

Atlanta, GA 30303 


Gary Sheehan (Via Certified Mail· Return Receipt Reque<ted) 
Ktlpatrick Townsend & Stockton LLP 
Suite 2800 
1100 Peachtree Street 
Atlanta, GA 30309 

Date: 16 -J.5-/( '~~Q-
Belinda Johnson . . r 
Acting Regional Hearing Clerk 
United States Environmental 
Protectlon Agency. Region 4 
A!lanta Federal Center 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, GA 30303 
(404) 562-9511 
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